
 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

OCTOBER 19, 2021 - 7:00 P.M. 

(810) 629-8631 

 

This will be a hybrid meeting held in person and electronically via Zoom.  

Details to join via Zoom follow this agenda. 

 

CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – 7:00 P.M. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – September 21, 2021 

Treasurer’s Report – September 30, 2021 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – October 13, 2021 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Livingston County Sheriff Report – September 30, 2021. 

2. Fire Service Report -September 30, 2021 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Request of Darren Moore to appeal his fire service fee. 

2. DMN Property Holdings proposed private drive application. 

3. Settlement agreement request. 

4. Appointment to Planning Commission. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS  

This is a time for residents to voice their comments, opinions or concerns on township-related 

issues and each person is allowed up to three minutes to speak. Please understand this is not a 

Q&A session and the Board may not answer questions. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Supervisor Mike Cunningham             Clerk Marcella Husted 

 
Please note: Anyone wishing to address the Township Board may do so during Public Remarks. The Tyrone Township 

Board of Trustees has established a policy limiting the time a person may address the Township Board at a regular or at a 

special meeting during the Public Remarks section of the agenda to three minutes. The Board reserves the right to place an 

issue under the New Business section of the agenda if additional discussion is warranted or to respond later either verbally 

or in writing through an appropriately appointed Township Official. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids 

or services should contact the Tyrone Township Clerk at (810) 629-8631 at least seven days prior to the meeting. 



 

 

  

Join Zoom Meeting  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87643036899?pwd=YTZOR1pnaERoakZXaGFRMlpBQmNKZz09  

Meeting ID: 876 4303 6899  
Passcode: 630471  
One tap mobile  
+13017158592,,87643036899#,,,,*630471# US (Washington DC)  
+13126266799,,87643036899#,,,,*630471# US (Chicago)  

Dial by your location  
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)  
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)  
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)  
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)  
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)  
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)  
Meeting ID: 876 4303 6899  
Passcode: 630471  
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keGO0atUS  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87643036899?pwd=YTZOR1pnaERoakZXaGFRMlpBQmNKZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keGO0atUS


CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – September 21, 2021 
Treasurer’s Report – September 30, 2021 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – October 13, 2021 



 

 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 – PAGE 1 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor Cunningham called the meeting of the Tyrone Township Board to order with the 

Pledge of Allegiance on September 21, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at the Tyrone Township Hall. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Supervisor Mike Cunningham, Clerk Marcella Husted, Trustees Herman Ferguson, Kurt 

Schulze, David Walker, and Zach Tucker (arrived at 7:02 p.m.). Absent: Treasurer Jennifer 

Eden. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

Trustee Walker moved to approve the agenda as amended. (Trustee Schulze seconded.)  The 

motion carried; all ayes.  The following items were removed: 

 

Moved New Business #5 Closed Session to follow Public Remarks.  

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – September 7, 2021 

Treasurer’s Report – August 31, 2021 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – September 15, 2021 

 

Trustee Walker moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  (Trustee Ferguson 

seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.   

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Fire Service Report - September 14, 2021 

2. Job Posting Notice- Planning & Zoning Assistant 

3. Livingston County Sheriff’s Report- August 31, 2021 

 

Trustee Walker moved to receive and place on file Communications #1-3 as presented. (Trustee 

Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Presentation of the township 2020-2021 audit. 

 

Neil Hammerbacher from auditing firm Gabridge & Co. presented the township’s 2020-2021 

audit. He commended the Board and the township’s accountant, Casey Zaski, on the audit’s 

“unmodified opinion” which is considered a clean audit. 



 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 – PAGE 2 

 

NEW BUSINESS (continued) 
 

2. Zoning Ordinance Amendment: Article 21 Supplemental District Regulations, 

Section 21.08 Stables and Animals. 

 

RESOLUTION #210903 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

TO ADOPT AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 36 

 

ARTICLE 21 SUPPLEMENTAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS, 

SECTION 21.28 STABLES AND ANIMALS 

 

(See original resolution for amendments) 

 

The amendment to Zoning Ordinance #36 Article 21, Section 21.28 Stable and Animals entirely 

replaces the current text of this section. This amendment revises the requirements and standards 

for keeping of animals that are not pets in FR, RE and R-1 zoning districts, clarifies the method 

used to calculate the number of animals allowed, and to add standards for the keeping of 

chickens, rabbits and bees. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Trustee Schulze 

SUPPORTED BY:  Trustee Tucker 

 

VOTE: Walker, yes; Schulze, yes; Ferguson, yes; Tucker, yes; Cunningham, yes; Eden, absent; 

Husted, yes. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: September 21, 2021 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on September 21, 2021, at 

which meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file 

in the records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 – PAGE 3 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS (continued) 

3. Request to write off uncollectible fire service accounts. 

 

Trustee Walker moved to write-off the uncollectible fire service accounts in the amount of 

$801.24 as presented.  (Trustee Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

4. Quote for laptop computer and software. 

 

Trustee Ferguson moved to authorize the purchase of a laptop computer and software for the 

zoning department for the cost not to exceed $1,000.00 as presented.  (Trustee Schulze 

seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

Two residents voiced their opinions. 

 

NEW BUSINESS (continued) 

5. Closed session to discuss confidential attorney-client information.  

 

RESOLUTION #210904 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Trustee Walker resolved to convene in closed session to discuss confidential attorney-client 

information. (Trustee Schulze seconded.) 

 

Roll call:  Walker, yes; Schulze, yes; Ferguson, yes; Tucker, yes; Cunningham, yes; Eden, 

absent; Husted, yes. 

 

The board convened in closed session at 7:27 p.m. 

 

* * * * * Closed Session Minutes * * * * * 

 

The board reconvened in open session at 7:54 p.m. 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee Walker moved to adjourn.  (Trustee Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m.   



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 1/2Page: 10/13/2021 08:24 AM

User: Casey

DB: Tyrone
CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2021 - 10/13/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 001 STATE BANK COMMON ACCOUNT

391.75 ACCIDENT FUND COMPANY OF1202286500109/23/2021
7,867.35 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2972286600109/23/2021
870.00 CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INCCWA2286700109/23/2021
124.98 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS1082286800109/23/2021

1,941.94 CHLORIDE SOLUTIONS LLCCHLORIDE2286900109/23/2021
14,520.00 DOUGIE'S DISPOSAL & RECYCLINGDOUGIES2287000109/23/2021

98.00 FENTON REGIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE4862287100109/23/2021
51.00 GRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS, INCGRIFFIN2287200109/23/2021

5,370.00 HAMILTON'S PROPANEHAMILT GAS2287300109/23/2021
20.00 MICHIGAN TOWNSHIPS ASSOCIATION752287400109/23/2021
242.22 PITNEY BOWES INC.2132287500109/23/2021

1,305.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYA2287600109/23/2021
165.82 WASTE MANAGEMENT3032287700109/23/2021
664.73 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD2287800109/28/2021
459.81 CONSUMERS ENERGY412287900109/28/2021

1,000.00 PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC1152288000109/28/2021
366.50 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER8712288100110/05/2021
519.00 PRECISION DATA PRODUCTSPRECISION2288200110/05/2021

1,669.51 REPUBLIC SERVICES#2374392288300110/05/2021
65.43 SHRED-IT USA1732288400110/05/2021
560.00 SUNSET MAINTENANCE, LLCSUNSET2288500110/05/2021
160.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYA2288600110/05/2021
89.69 AT&T MOBILITYAT&T MOBIL2288700110/12/2021

1,958.43 CHLORIDE SOLUTIONS LLCCHLORIDE2288800110/12/2021
240.12 CONSUMERS ENERGY412288900110/12/2021

13,000.00 GABRIDGE & COMPANY, PLCGABRIDGE2289000110/12/2021
1,022.00 I.T. RIGHT, INC.1722289100110/12/2021
230.28 RICOH USA, INC.RICOH USA2289200110/12/2021
618.45 STAPLES  ADVANTAGE252289300110/12/2021
987.54 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUPVIEW NEWS2289400110/12/2021

001 TOTALS:

56,579.55 Total of 30 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
56,579.55 Total of 30 Checks:

Bank 022 STATE BANK - PUBLIC SAFETY checking

56.00 ROSATI,SCHULTZ,JOPPICH&AMTSBUECHLER121126302209/23/2021
26.89 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD126402209/28/2021

27,493.00 HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT176126502209/28/2021
4,341.00 HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT176126602210/05/2021
34,728.00 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF FENTON19126702210/12/2021
33,281.00 CITY OF FENTON FIRE DEPARTMENT16126802210/12/2021

022 TOTALS:

99,925.89 Total of 6 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
99,925.89 Total of 6 Checks:

Bank 101 FLAGSTAR-SEWER DEBT-CKG

V19,800.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER931118910109/28/2021
38,400.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER931119010109/28/2021
19,800.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER931119110109/28/2021

101 TOTALS:

58,200.00 Total of 2 Disbursements:

19,800.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
78,000.00 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank 102 SEWER O&M CHECKING 590

3,337.81 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9644410209/28/2021
30,682.75 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9644510209/28/2021
3,600.20 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9644610210/05/2021
72,137.39 LIVINGSTON COUNTY DRAIN COMM.2444710210/12/2021
1,416.55 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9644810210/12/2021
46,427.98 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9644910210/12/2021

45.00 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9645010210/12/2021

102 TOTALS:



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 2/2Page: 10/13/2021 08:24 AM

User: Casey

DB: Tyrone
CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2021 - 10/13/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

157,647.68 Total of 7 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
157,647.68 Total of 7 Checks:

Bank 108 TAX FUND FLAGSTAR 

V2,915.00 CAPITAL REAL ESTATE TAX SERVICEREFUND TAX303310809/23/2021
V1,315.11 CORELOGICREFUND TAX303410809/23/2021
V1,614.36 CORELOGICREFUND TAX303510809/23/2021
V1,126.30 CORELOGICREFUND TAX303610809/23/2021
V1,227.18 CORELOGICREFUND TAX303710809/23/2021
V745.89 CORELOGICREFUND TAX303810809/23/2021
V1,598.90 CORELOGICREFUND TAX303910809/23/2021
V1,501.26 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304010809/23/2021
V1,312.00 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304110809/23/2021
V1,524.75 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304210809/23/2021
V418.57 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304310809/23/2021
V997.08 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304410809/23/2021
V1,067.88 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304510809/23/2021
V2,281.00 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304610809/23/2021
V2,088.01 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304710809/23/2021
V412.02 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304810809/23/2021
V997.43 CORELOGICREFUND TAX304910809/23/2021
V1,678.17 CORELOGICREFUND TAX305010809/23/2021
V1,405.76 LERETA LLCREFUND TAX305110809/23/2021
V1,321.10 LERETA LLCREFUND TAX305210809/23/2021
V4,352.39 LERETA LLCREFUND TAX305310809/23/2021
V419.03 LERETA LLCREFUND TAX305410809/23/2021

2,915.00 CAPITAL REAL ESTATE TAX SERVICEREFUND TAX305510809/23/2021
20,227.74 CORELOGICREFUND TAX305610809/23/2021
1,678.17 CORELOGICREFUND TAX305710809/23/2021
1,405.76 LERETA LLCREFUND TAX305810809/23/2021
6,092.52 LERETA LLCREFUND TAX305910809/23/2021

216,575.15 FENTON SCHOOLS806306010809/23/2021
192,690.09 GISDGISD306110809/23/2021
130,234.09 HARTLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS706306210809/23/2021
220,604.21 LESALESA306310809/23/2021
270,425.40 LINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS945306410809/23/2021

3,047,318.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871306510809/23/2021
502.53 STATE OF MICHIGANSTATEOFMI306610809/23/2021
756.57 CAPITAL REAL ESTATEREFUND TAX306710810/05/2021
16.03 CISLO TITLE COMPANYREFUND TAX306810810/05/2021

12,902.07 FENTON SCHOOLS806306910810/05/2021
7,292.63 GISDGISD307010810/05/2021
7,157.91 HARTLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS706307110810/05/2021
8,583.73 LESALESA307210810/05/2021
8,726.61 LINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS945307310810/05/2021

108,836.80 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871307410810/05/2021

108 TOTALS:

4,264,941.01 Total of 20 Disbursements:

32,319.19 Less 22 Void Checks:
4,297,260.20 Total of 42 Checks:

Bank 203 TRUST & AGENCY 701 CKG

1,850.00 CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INCCWA192520309/23/2021
2,212.50 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871192620309/23/2021
442.56 TYRONE TOWNSHIP96192720309/23/2021

203 TOTALS:

4,505.06 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
4,505.06 Total of 3 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

4,641,799.19 Total of 68 Disbursements:

52,119.19 Less 23 Void Checks:
4,693,918.38 Total of 91 Checks:



10/13/2021 TYRONE TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S REPORT

JMM      Period ending SEPTEMBER, 2021

INVESTMENTS Int MICHIGAN CLASS Int Rate FLG PEG CD Int Grand Totals Each

TOWNSHIP FUNDS Interest Ckg ICS Rate Monthly AVG. matures 8/9/22 rate Fund

General  101 $2,043,780.35 2,431,988.82$      2.22% 4,475,769.17$              

Tech Fund   141 $51,781.85 5,000.00$             2.22% $56,781.85

Building & Site   145 $141,525.37 7,500.00$             2.22% $149,025.37

Parks/Recreation   208 $5,934.23 0.40% $5,934.23

Liquor Control   212 $1,458.60 0.40% $1,458.60

Road   245 $111,163.09 44,224.80$           2.22% $261,952.99 1.00% 417,340.88$                 

Revolving   246 $164,513.95 97,500.00$           0.40% $192,432.58 1.00% 454,446.53$                 

Right of Way   260 $31,878.56 0.40% $31,878.56

Peg 274 $189,046.33 194,450.42$    0.20% $383,496.75

Lk Tyrone Grant 281 $0.00 0.40% $0.00

Special Assessments

Jayne Hill Lts   218 $1,648.01 0.40% $1,648.01

Walnut Shores Lts  219 $752.48 0.40% $752.48

Shannon Glen Rubbish 225 $3,961.09 $3,961.09

Jayne Hill Rubbish Removal 226 $6,785.08 0.40% $6,785.08

Apple Orchard Rubbish Removal 227 $2,289.34 $2,289.34

Silver Lake Rubbish Removal 228 $8,837.83 $8,837.83

Parkin Lane Snow 231 $16,355.64 0.40% $16,355.64

Great Oaks Dr 232 $8,489.16 0.40% $8,489.16

Laural Springs Rubbish removal 233 $3,955.00 $3,955.00

Account Totals $2,794,155.96 2,586,213.62$       $454,385.57  194,450.42$    6,029,205.57$              

Health Flex Spending 101 The State Bank Health Flex Total

FSA Account ($10K Loan to Open) 10,911.61$           0.00% 10,911.61$                   

10,911.61$                   

Public Safety- 205 Public Safety Total

Public Safety  205 - State Bank checking 346,669.95$         0.40% 346,669.95$                 

Public Safety 205- State Bank Savings 6,402.95$             6,402.95$                      

Public Safety 205 - Level One Bank 205,379.42$         0.40% 205,379.42$                 

Public Safety ICS- 205 State Bank 774,065.68$         2.22% 774,065.68$                 

  1,332,518.00$              

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP SEWER 2003- 392 Flagstar  Tyrone Sewer 03 Total

Debt Service   392 Flagstar Bank 374,468.82$         0.6% 374,468.82$                 

Flagstar CDARS 2003 (matures 4/21/2022)(0817) 547,547.96$         0.15% 547,547.96$                 

Flagstar CD 2003 (matures 3/29/2021)(3879) 1,000,000.00$      0.25% 1,000,000.00$              

Flagstar CDARS 2003 Fund Martures 9/15/22)(6804) 469,180.07$         0.15% 469,180.07$                 

2,391,196.85$              

Road Improvements- Flagstar  Road Improvement Total

Parkin Lane Rd 2010    (396) 17,000.87$           0.70% 17,000.87$                   

Lake Shannon 2018 (399) 290,458.46$         0.70% 290,458.46$                 

Laurel springs (400) 48,961.51$           0.70% 48,961.51$                   

Irish Hills (401) 159,053.81$         159,053.81$                 

CIBC- Parkin Lane CD(matures 8/9/2022) 127,853.69$         0.20% 127,853.69$                 

643,328.34$                 

SEWER O&M CHECKING ACCT- 590   Flagstar Sewer O&M Total

Sewer Operation and Maintenance CK  (5710) 123,615.99$         0.70% 123,615.99$                 

Sewer Operation and Maintenance SV   (4865) 82,817.58$           1.39% 82,817.58$                   

CIBC- O&M CD(matures 8/6/22)(6337) 163,084.77$         0.20% 163,084.77$                 

O&M CDARS (matures 8/12/2022)(4312) 144,195.30$         1.50% 144,195.30$                 

O&M CDARS (matures 8/10/2022)(4710) 146,335.94$         0.20% 146,335.94$                 

660,049.58$                 

TRUST & AGENCY- 701 Chase Trust & Agency Total

Township Trust and Agency 701 Savings 1,514.04$             0.18% 1,514.04$                      

Township Trust and Agency 701 Checking 26,673.13$           0.00% 26,673.13$                   

 28,187.17$                   

5,066,191.55$              

Total Township  Monies 11,095,397.12$            



COMMUNICATION #1 
 

Livingston County Sheriff Report –  
September 31, 2021. 



LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

SEPTEMBER 2021 CALLS FOR SERVICE

MICHIGAN STATE POLICE

SEPTEMBER 2021 CALLS FOR SERVICE



Nature # Events

911 HANG UP 3

ABANDONED VEHICLE 1

ALARM 1

ANIMAL COMPLAINT 9

AREA CHECK 1

ASSIST EMS 17

ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT 6

ASSIST OTHER AGENCY 1

CHILD OR ADULT ABUSE/NEGLECT 1

CITIZEN ASSIST 10

CIVIL COMPLAINT 1

DISTURBANCE/TROUBLE 1

DOMESTIC PHYSICAL IN PROGRESS 2

DOMESTIC VERBAL 3

EXTRICATION - MOTOR VEH ACC 2

FOLLOW UP 1

FRAUD 3

GAS LEAK OUTSIDE 1

GENERAL NON CRIMINAL 1

HAZARD 7

HIT AND RUN ACCIDENT 3

INTIMIDATION THREATS HARASSMEN 3

MENTAL/CMH/PSYCH 1

MESSAGE DELIVERY 1

MISC COMPLAINTS 1

MISSING PERSON/RUN-A-WAY 1

MOTORIST ASSIST 5

NOISE COMPLAINTS 3

PARKING COMPLAINTS 1

PDA 15

PERSONAL INJURY ACCIDENT 2

PHYSICAL DOMES REPORT ONLY 1

PIREF (REFUSE EMS) 1

SUICIDAL SUBJECT 1

SUSPICIOUS PERSON 1

SUSPICIOUS SITUATION 3

SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 2

TREE HAZARD 3

TRESSPASSING, LOITERING 2

UNKNOWN ACCIDENT 3

WARRANT ARREST CRIMINAL 1

WELFARE CHECK 4

TOTAL: 130

LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

TYRONE TOWNSHIP SEPTEMBER 2021



MONTH CALLS FOR SERVICE TICKETS WRITTEN ARRESTS

JANUARY 116 8 2

FEBRUARY 101 10 4

MARCH 102 8 2

APRIL 138 21 0

MAY 112 27 7

JUNE 163 24 3

JULY 163 19 3

AUGUST 124 12 3

SEPTEMBER 130 20 0

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

YTD TOTALS: 1149 149 24

TYRONE TOWNSHIP



HARTLANDHANDYBRIGHTON COHOCTAH CONWAY DEERFIELD GENOA

JANUARY 112 JANUARY 29 JANUARY 26 JANUARY 41 JANUARY 240 JANUARY 53 JANUARY 132

FEBRUARY 110 FEBRUARY 26 FEBRUARY 24 FEBRUARY 34 FEBRUARY 221 FEBRUARY 67 FEBRUARY 111

MARCH 109 MARCH 36 MARCH 29 MARCH 26 MARCH 260 MARCH 41 MARCH 119

APRIL 114 APRIL 37 APRIL 15 APRIL 23 APRIL 233 APRIL 53 APRIL 127

MAY 113 MAY 22 MAY 12 MAY 35 MAY 269 MAY 73 MAY 134

JUNE 165 JUNE 25 JUNE 20 JUNE 35 JUNE 255 JUNE 72 JUNE 121

JULY 156 JULY 33 JULY 36 JULY 37 JULY 261 JULY 85 JULY 141

AUGUST 126 AUGUST 33 AUGUST 27 AUGUST 25 AUGUST 246 AUGUST 72 AUGUST 126

SEPTEMBER 114 SEPTEMBER 36 SEPTEMBER 35 SEPTEMBER 35 SEPTEMBER 222 SEPTEMBER 72 SEPTEMBER 143

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 1119 277 224 291 2207 588 1154

JANUARY 22 JANUARY 0 JANUARY 3 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 48 JANUARY 14 JANUARY 44

FEBRUARY 20 FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 5 FEBRUARY 5 FEBRUARY 40 FEBRUARY 17 FEBRUARY 33

MARCH 21 MARCH 5 MARCH 4 MARCH 9 MARCH 52 MARCH 17 MARCH 27

APRIL 25 APRIL 2 APRIL 3 APRIL 9 APRIL 50 APRIL 9 APRIL 58

MAY 24 MAY 1 MAY 2 MAY 6 MAY 39 MAY 20 MAY 41

JUNE 19 JUNE 5 JUNE 1 JUNE 1 JUNE 27 JUNE 18 JUNE 20

JULY 38 JULY 3 JULY 1 JULY 7 JULY 39 JULY 15 JULY 36

AUGUST 28 AUGUST 1 AUGUST 15 AUGUST 3 AUGUST 53 AUGUST 16 AUGUST 17

SEPTEMBER 19 SEPTEMBER 6 SEPTEMBER 7 SEPTEMBER 6 SEPTEMBER 28 SEPTEMBER 14 SEPTEMBER 33

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 216 29 41 48 376 140 309

JANUARY 0 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 4 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 5

FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 0 FEBRUARY 2 FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 8 FEBRUARY 2 FEBRUARY 4

MARCH 2 MARCH 1 MARCH 0 MARCH 3 MARCH 5 MARCH 2 MARCH 2

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 11 APRIL 2 APRIL 2

MAY 7 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 1 MAY 9 MAY 3 MAY 5

JUNE 2 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 1 JUNE 4 JUNE 1 JUNE 3

JULY 3 JULY 1 JULY 0 JULY 1 JULY 7 JULY 3 JULY 2

AUGUST 2 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 1 AUGUST 4 AUGUST 6 AUGUST 4

SEPTEMBER 2 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 1 SEPTEMBER 2

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 19 3 3 9 52 21 29

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTENTICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE



TYRONEHOWELL IOSCO MARION OCEOLA PUTNAM

JANUARY 108 JANUARY 28 JANUARY 71 JANUARY 109 JANUARY 56 JANUARY 116

FEBRUARY 115 FEBRUARY 25 FEBRUARY 72 FEBRUARY 108 FEBRUARY 55 FEBRUARY 101

MARCH 115 MARCH 26 MARCH 78 MARCH 86 MARCH 70 MARCH 102

APRIL 123 APRIL 22 APRIL 57 APRIL 86 APRIL 47 APRIL 138

MAY 119 MAY 24 MAY 75 MAY 114 MAY 72 MAY 112

JUNE 119 JUNE 28 JUNE 110 JUNE 110 JUNE 70 JUNE 163

JULY 135 JULY 45 JULY 91 JULY 121 JULY 75 JULY 163

AUGUST 124 AUGUST 40 AUGUST 85 AUGUST 88 AUGUST 68 AUGUST 124

SEPTEMBER 120 SEPTEMBER 24 SEPTEMBER 71 SEPTEMBER 85 SEPTEMBER 67 SEPTEMBER 130

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

1078 262 710 907 580 1149

JANUARY 54 JANUARY 5 JANUARY 10 JANUARY 39 JANUARY 5 JANUARY 8

FEBRUARY 42 FEBRUARY 4 FEBRUARY 9 FEBRUARY 23 FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 10

MARCH 51 MARCH 5 MARCH 18 MARCH 32 MARCH 8 MARCH 8

APRIL 39 APRIL 3 APRIL 7 APRIL 35 APRIL 3 APRIL 21

MAY 31 MAY 11 MAY 16 MAY 100 MAY 2 MAY 27

JUNE 62 JUNE 3 JUNE 12 JUNE 52 JUNE 4 JUNE 24

JULY 52 JULY 3 JULY 13 JULY 69 JULY 6 JULY 19

AUGUST 34 AUGUST 3 AUGUST 11 AUGUST 47 AUGUST 2 AUGUST 12

SEPTEMBER 43 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 8 SEPTEMBER 27 SEPTEMBER 4 SEPTEMBER 20

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

408 37 104 424 40 149

JANUARY 13 JANUARY 0 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 4 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 2

FEBRUARY 9 FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 3 FEBRUARY 0 FEBRUARY 4

MARCH 4 MARCH 1 MARCH 2 MARCH 2 MARCH 5 MARCH 2

APRIL 13 APRIL 0 APRIL 1 APRIL 6 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 2 MAY 1 MAY 1 MAY 2 MAY 0 MAY 7

JUNE 3 JUNE 2 JUNE 3 JUNE 4 JUNE 0 JUNE 3

JULY 4 JULY 0 JULY 2 JULY 1 JULY 1 JULY 3

AUGUST 4 AUGUST 1 AUGUST 3 AUGUST 1 AUGUST 2 AUGUST 3

SEPTEMBER 4 SEPTEMBER 1 SEPTEMBER 1 SEPTEMBER 5 SEPTEMBER 2 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

56 7 20 28 11 24

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTENTICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICECALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE



NUMBER OF RESPONSE TIME NUMBER OF RESPONSE TIME

CALLS CONTRACT TIME CALLS NON CONTRACT TIME

TOWNSHIP 3:00PM - 11:00PM 3:00PM - 11:00PM 11:00PM - 3:00PM 11:00PM - 3:00PM TOTAL

BRIGHTON 40 32:01 77 31:24 117

COHOCTAH 12 22:31 24 44:30 36

CONWAY 20 15:38 16 37:42 36

DEERFIELD 19 31:52 16 25:05 35

GENOA 86 20:24 140 27:05 226

HANDY 29 19:32 44 19:56 73

HARTLAND 59 23:42 85 26:39 144

HOWELL 58 16:46 66 24:13 124

IOSCO 10 37:59 14 32:07 24

MARION 29 37:06 42 22:42 71

OCEOLA 32 14:50 54 22:09 86

PUTNAM 36 13:51 33 27:23 69

TYRONE 96 20:35 42 34:35 138



COMMUNICATION #2 
 

Fire Service Report – Oct. 13, 2021 
 
 
 



















NEW BUSINESS #1 
 

Request of Darren Moore to appeal his fire 
service fee. 





















NEW BUSINESS #2 
 

DMN Property Holdings proposed private 
driveway application. 

 



1

Terri Medor

From: Ross Nicholson

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2021 9:49 AM

To: Terri Medor; Marcella Husted

Cc: 'Richard Erickson'; Kurt Schulze; 'Jon Ward'; Karie Carter

Subject: Agenda Request - DMN Shared Private Driveways

Attachments: PC Meeting and PH Synopsis 09-14-2021.docx; PC Review application DMN.pdf; DMN 

Shared Driveways Planning Report (09102021).pdf; Letter to Ross Nicholson 9.28.21.pdf; 

20-012 Site Plan-TRAFFIC_CONTROL_SIGNS.pdf; Private Driveway Off Shannon Glen 

Maintenance Agreement.docx; Private Driveway Off Riverwalk Way Maintenance 

Agreement.docx; Deed Restrictions Parcel 5.pdf

Importance: High

Marcie & Terri, 

 

I have attached the application and supporting documents for the DMN Shared Private Driveways application to be 

included on the next Board agenda. 

 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing for that application on 09/14/2021 and recommended conditional 

approval of the shared private driveways (synopsis attached).  The recommendation for approval was conditional on the 

following items: 

- Adding information on traffic control devices to the plans. (complete) 

- Approval from the Shannon Glen Association (See attached letter dated 09/28/2021 from Abby Cooper) 

- Acknowledgment from the PC that the “T” turnaround design may be utilized in this application (complete) 

- Clarification on access for lot 5 (complete) 

- Confirmation of standards from Fire Inspector (complete) 

- Verification of maintenance agreements (complete) 

- Minor Revisions to maintenance agreements (complete) 

 

This shared private driveway application was submitted concurrently with a land division application.  Board approval of 

the shared private driveway is required prior to land division review/approval.  

 

I have attached the application and supporting documents to this email for the meeting packet: 

 

Attachments: 

- PC Meeting at Public Hearing Synopsis 09/14/2021 

- Original Application 

- CWA Review 

- Letter From Abby Cooper RE: Shannon Glen Association Approval  

- Site Plan 

- Maintenance Agreement for SPD off Shannon Glen  

- Maintenance Agreement for SPD off Riverwalk  

- Deed Restrictions 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or would like any additional information. 

 

Thank you! 

 



2

Ross Nicholson 
Planning & Zoning Administrator 

 
    Tyrone Township 
    8420 Runyan Lake Rd. 
    Fenton, MI 48430 
    phone: (810) 629-8631 
    fax: (810) 629-0047 

 

 

  www.tyronetownship.us 

 
Notice: This email, including any attachments, is covered by Electronic Communication Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521, is confidential and may be legally 

privileged.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly 

prohibited.  Please reply to the sender if you have received this message in error and destroy all copies of the original message.  

 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING SYNOPSIS 

September, 2021  7:00 p.m. 

 

Note: This meeting was held at the Tyrone Township Hall 

Note: This meeting was recessed at 7:30 pm for a public hearing 

 

PRESENT: Kurt Schulze, Jon Ward, Garrett Ladd, Steve Krause, Bill Wood, and Rich Erickson 

 

ABSENT: Dan Stickel 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Ross Nicholson and Zach Michels (CWA) 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by Vice Chairman Schulze. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Vice Chairman Schulze asked if there were any public comments 

not relating to an item on the agenda.  Several public comments were received. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  The Lake Urban Crossing Preliminary PUD application 

was removed from the agenda because the revised CWA review was not available.  Old Business 

Item # 3 – Durocher Special Land Use Site Plan Amendment was placed ahead of all other 

business because other business items were scheduled for a public hearing beginning at 7:30 pm.  

The agenda was approved as amended. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  

No draft meeting minutes available.  The item was deferred. 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  

 

1) Durocher Special Land Use Site Plan Amendment:  Zach Michels summarized the 

application and read through the review he had prepared.  The Planning Commission 

discussed the application and review with the applicants.  The item was temporarily 

closed to hold the scheduled public hearing for other agenda items and reopened 

following the public hearing.  Direction was provided to the applicants by the Planning 

Commission to make revisions to the site plan and application documents.  No action was 

taken. 

2) Vale Royal Barn Special Land Use Amendment: The regular meeting was recessed at 

7:30 pm to hold a public hearing regarding the Vale Royal Barn Special Land Use 

Amendment application.  Zach Michels summarized the request and read through the 

latest review he had prepared for the application.  The Planning Commission discussed 

the application with the applicants.  One public comment was received in favor of the 



proposed amendments.  The Planning Commission moved to recommend Township 

Board approval of the application with minor conditions. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

1) DMN Properties Shared Private Driveway for Proposed Land Division:  A public 

hearing was held for the application following the Vale Royal Barn public hearing.  Zach 

Michels summarized the application and read through the review he had prepared.  The 

Planning Commission discussed the application with the applicants and provided 

direction to make several revisions to the site plan and application documents.  One 

public comment was received regarding the authorization to utilize the Shannon Glen 

Association’s private roads to provide access to the subject property.  The Planning 

Commission moved to recommend Township Board approval of the proposed shared 

private driveways with several conditions. 

 

 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  No public comments were received. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS:  

 

1) Master Plan Preparation:  Zach Michels and the Planning Commission briefly 

discussed strategy for the master planning process.  The Planning Commission requested 

that Zach Michels prepare additional information to be discussed at the next Workshop 

meeting.  No action was taken. 

2) Next Workshop Meeting:  The next Workshop meeting was scheduled for Wednesday, 

09/22/2021, beginning at 6:00 pm. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:43 by Vice Chairman Schulze. 















































































 

Richard K. Carlisle, President   Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President   John L. Enos, Principal 
David Scurto, Principal   Benjamin R. Carlisle, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal   Craig Strong, Principal   R. Donald Wortman, Principal 

Laura K. Kreps, Senior Associate   Paul Montagno, Senior Associate, Megan Masson-Minock, Senior Associate 

September 10, 2021 
 

Shared Private Driveways Review 
for 

Tyrone Township, Michigan 
 
PETITION INTRODUCTION 
 
Applicant: David Bair (agent) 

Owner: DMN Property Holdings LLC 

Plan Date: January 29, 2021 

Request: Shared private driveways (2) 
 
 
PETITION DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of 2 shared private driveways to provide access for proposed land 
divisions.   
 
Shared private driveways can provide access for up to 4 single-family lots, site condominium units, or 
non-residential principal buildings and can have a maximum length of up to 1,200 feet.   
 
Both of the proposed shared private driveways would have access from existing private roads: the end 
of Shannon Glen on the east and the Riverwalk cul-de-sac on the west.  The existing private roads 
connect with Faussett to the north. 
 
The proposed eastern shared private driveway is shown providing access for up to 4 lots (Lots 5, 6, 7, 
and 8).  The proposed western shared private is shown providing access for up to 5 lots (Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 
and 5). 
 
The Zoning Ordinance outlines the process and design standards for shared private driveways and the 
process and limitations for the expansion (length or number of lots) of private roads, including shared 
private driveways connected to existing private roads. 
 
Expansion of the existing private roads, by the addition of the shared private driveways, is covered in the 
“Private Road Expansion” portion of this report. 
 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
2 

This review does not examine the proposed land division, but it should be noted that lot areas should 
exclude the shared private driveway right-of-way. 
 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 
Address: None 

Location: South of Shannon Glen subdivision, east of Ore Creek 

Parcel Number: 04-32-100-010 

Lot Area: ~54.15 acres  

Frontage: ~70 feet Shannon Glen stub, ~370 feet Riverwalk cul-de-sac 

Existing Land Use: Vacant/woodlands 

 
Aerial of the Site 
 

 
 
  



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
3 

ZONING 
 
The property is within the R-1 Single Family Residential zoning district.  The intent of that district is 
below. 
 

Zoning per Zoning 
Map: 

 

R-1 Single Family Residential 
In general, the R-1 single family zoning districts will occupy land areas deemed 
acceptable for medium density residential uses by the soils suitability analysis 
performed in concert with the Tyrone Township Master Plan. The intent of this district 
is to establish and preserve single family home neighborhoods free from other uses, 
except those which are normal accessory, compatible, and supportive uses convenient 
to the residents of such a district. The district will provide a transition from strictly 
agricultural use areas to suburbanized residential uses. The provision of public sewer 
and water is not expected in the foreseeable future. In order to preserve natural 
features and to provide design flexibility in the R-1 District, cluster development shall 
be permitted as described in Article 8. 

 

Current Zoning Map 
 

 
 
Comments:  Although not directly a part of the shared private driveway application, the proposed 
properties served by the proposed shared driveways appear generally consistent with the developmental 
standards of the R-1 Single Family Residential zoning district. 
 
 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
4 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP  
 
Future Land Use Map  Medium Density Single Family Detached Residential 

This classification is intended to provide a transitional residential density between 
Low and High Density Residential. Lots will generally range from 0.5 acre to 1.5 acres 
per dwelling unit. This designation has been applied to land in and around existing 
residential subdivisions and near planned commercial areas. Medium density 
development should be encouraged to locate near areas that already have the 
infrastructure and amenities to support it.   

 
Future Land Use Map 
 

 
 
Comments:  Although not directly a part of the shared private driveway application, the proposed 
properties served by the proposed shared driveways appear consistent with the Future Land Use Map.  
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTIES 
 
The surrounding properties are primarily residential uses with some natural/preservation uses, as noted 
below.   
 

 North East South West 
Surrounding Zoning R-1 Single Family RE Rural Estate  RE Rural Estate n/a, RE Rural Estate 

Surrounding Land Uses Houses Houses, woodlands Nature preserve Lake Shannon, 
houses 

Future Land-Use Map  
Medium Density 

Single Family 
Residential 

Residential/Natural 
Resources 

Preservation  

Residential/Natural 
Resources 

Preservation 

Medium Density 
Single Family 
Residential 

Residential/ 
Natural Resources 

Preservation 

Medium Density 
Residential 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
5 

PRIVATE ROAD EXPANSION 
 
Both of the proposed shared private driveways will have access from existing private roads.  Expansion 
of private roads, whether in length or number of lots served, is limited for legally nonconforming roads. 
 
The existing private roads have a maximum length of roughly 2,700 feet from Faussett to the cul-de-sac 
on Riverwalk and provide access for 33 lots (and the property for proposed division). 
 
A new private road with a single access point could have a maximum length of 1,200 feet, including the 
length of any shared private driveways.  The Township can allow a greater length, if a dry hydrant 
system is installed. 
 
A new private road with a single access point could provide access for a maximum of 30 lots.  The 
Township can reduce that number based on local conditions. 
 
Limits are placed on the expansion of existing private roads, including physical extension of a private 
road, providing access to additional lots, or the addition of shared private driveways with access from 
the private road. 
 
The private roads connect to Faussett with a boulevard road segment.  Unfortunately, the Zoning 
Ordinance does not provide a definition of or guidance on “access point.”   
 
Based on research by Planning and Zoning Administrator Nicholson, the existing private roads for 
Shannon Glen were approved with more lots than would have been allowed for a single access point, 
with the condition that the connection with Faussett be reconfigured as a boulevard for its entire length.  
The rationale being that a boulevard allows more than a single path for emergency vehicles to access 
the development. 
 
Based on that previous approval, it appears that limitations for the expansion of legally nonconforming 
private roads, with respect to the number of lots served and the total length, would not apply in this 
case. 
 
We are aware that the Fire Inspector has previously expressed concerns about these existing private 
roads providing access for additional lots.  A recent review letter acknowledges installation of a dry 
hydrant on Faussett and requires any houses built as part of the land division have sprinkler systems 
installed. 
 
Comments:  The Planning Commission should affirm the Fire Inspector’s condition that any houses have 
a sprinkler system, and that requirement should be recorded as a deed restriction. 
 
 
SHARED PRIVATE DRIVEWAY APPROVAL PROCESS 
 
The approval process for shared private driveways is outlined in §24.05 Shared Private Driveway and 
Access Easement Approval Requirements. 
 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
6 

The Planning Commission holds a public hearing and provides a recommendation to the Township 
Board.  The applicant may be directed to provide additional information deemed necessary to review 
the application. 
 
An applicant must provide a site plan/engineering plan of the proposed shared private driveway and a 
maintenance agreement.  A single maintenance agreement has been provided for the proposed shared 
private driveways.  
 
Comments:  We defer comment on details of the maintenance agreement to the Township attorney but 
recommend a separate maintenance agreement for each of the proposed shared private driveways.  
 
 
SHARED PRIVATE DRIVEWAY DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
Design standards for shared private driveways are outlined in §24.06 Shared Private Driveway and 
Access Easement Design Standards of the Zoning Ordinance and are examined below.  The Planning 
Commission may recommend approval of a modified shared private driveway design standard where it 
can be demonstrated that the modified standard meets safety and sound engineering requirements. 
 

A. Design of Shared Private Driveways.  A shared private driveway shall be designed and constructed 
consistent with the standards adopted herein and by the Livingston County Road Commission standards 
for public roads except the requirement for bituminous pavement as modified in this Article by Tyrone 
Township.  In the event of conflict between standards, the higher standard, as determined by the 
Planning Commission, shall prevail.  The design of a shared private driveway shall be subject to approval 
by the Township.  When the developer of a proposed shared private driveway owns an additional access 
point for a lot along the adjacent public or private road, the additional access point shall be removed 
and the lot shall be accessed from the shared private driveway.  This standard may be waived where it is 
determined that the access point does not have a negative impact on traffic or safety along the main 
road and that compliance would be a burden to the site, the resources on it, its configuration, and/or 
the property owners.  
 
Comments:  To the best of our knowledge, there are no adjacent access points that should be removed.  
We defer further comment related to public road standards to the Township Engineer and the Road 
Commission. 
 

B. Drainage.  Shared private driveways shall be designed and constructed in relation to existing land 
contours and other natural or man-made features to assist in providing controlled drainage for the 
shared private driveway in accordance with Township and County requirements.  A drainage bypass 
culvert may be required where a shared private driveway intersects with a road.  All other drainage 
improvements shall be required as determined necessary by the site drainage patterns and be 
consistent with established Township policy, the requirements of the Livingston County Road 
Commission and Drain Commissioner, and sound engineering practices. 
 
Comments:  The proposed shared private driveways appear to be designed to generally follow the 
existing topography and in a manner that would allow for controlled drainage.  We defer further 
comment related to drainage to the Township Engineer  
 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
7 

C. Sight-Distance.  Shared private driveways shall be designed and constructed in relation to existing land 
contours and other natural or man-made features to provide safe and adequate vision for drivers using 
a shared private driveway access.  A shared private driveway intersection with a road shall meet the 
sight distance requirements of the Livingston County Road Commission for driveways and road 
approaches. Other traffic safety improvements shall be required as determined necessary to be 
consistent with established Township policy, the requirements of the Livingston County Road 
Commission, and sound planning and engineering practices.  If the area to be maintained in order to 
meet the sight distance requirement extends onto adjacent property, then easements shall be secured 
for the purposes of clearing and maintaining the area for compliance with this requirement.  If 
easements cannot be secured, the access point will have to be relocated.  Provisions for maintenance of 
areas required for sight-distance shall be included in the shared private driveway and access easement 
maintenance agreement (see Section 24.05.B).  
 
Comments:  It appears that the proposed shared driveways generally follow the topography in a manner 
that provides adequate vision for drivers, including at intersections.  We defer additional comment to the 
Township Engineer and Road Commission. 
 

D. Minimum Easement Width.  The minimum width of the easement for a shared private driveway shall be 
sixty-six (66) feet.  
 
Comments:  The access easements for both of the proposed private shared driveways are 66 feet wide.   
 

E. Minimum Finished Surface Width.  The finished, load-bearing surface of a shared private driveway shall 
be not less than twenty (20) feet in width.  Subject to the Township’s approval, a shared private 
driveway may have a finished, loadbearing surface of not less than sixteen feet in width, plus two (2) 
load-bearing shoulders, each two (2) feet wide.  Those shared private driveways served by hydrants shall 
have a finished, load-bearing surface of not less than twenty-six (26) feet.  This width may be reduced to 
twenty (20) feet at the discretion of the Planning Commission provided that bump-outs, which are a 
minimum of twenty-six (26) feet in width, are provided at least once every 300 feet. 
 
Comments:  As noted on Sheet 2, the proposed shared private driveways will be 20 feet wide.  Dry 
hydrants are in the general area, but hydrants do not directly serve the proposed shared private 
driveways. 
 

F. Shared Private Driveway Construction Materials.  The surface of a shared private driveway shall be 
constructed on a base of not less than six (6) inches of road gravel.  The base shall be laid after removal 
of all unsuitable soil.  Unsuitable soil shall be replaced with road gravel or other material as may be 
specified by the Township Engineer.  The Township Engineer may also specify the installation of soil 
stabilization devices, sub-base, or underlying fabric and drainage facilities to better assure the long-term 
life of the shared private driveway.  
 
Comments:  As noted on Sheets 3 and 4, the proposed shared private driveways will have 6 inches of 
sand subbase, 7 inches of 21AA gravel, and 3 inches of asphalt. 
 

G. Maximum Length and Units.  Maximum length of a shared private driveway shall be one thousand, two 
hundred (1,200) feet with a maximum of four (4) lots or dwelling units served by the shared private 
driveway.  The maximum length requirement may be extended upon the recommendation of the 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
8 

Planning Commission and the approval of the Township Board.  Shared private driveways that exceed 
the one thousand, two hundred (1,200) foot maximum length shall be required to install a dry hydrant 
system.  The system shall be subject to the approval of the Township engineer and fire department with 
jurisdiction.  
 
Comments:  Although not clearly labelled, both of the proposed shared private driveways appear to have 
a length of less than 1,200 feet from their connection with the existing private streets.  The proposed 
eastern shared driveway could provide access for up to 4 lots, Lots 5, 6, 7, and 8.  The proposed western 
shared driveway could provide access for up to 5 lots, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.  The plans should be revised 
to make it clear where Lot 5 will get access from, either the eastern shared private driveway or the 
Riverwalk cul-de-sac. 
 

H. Turnarounds.  Any shared private driveway serving more than three (3) lots or dwelling units shall 
include a circular cul-de-sac turnaround or a “T” turnaround.  The Planning Commission shall determine 
the type of turnaround required.  Cul-de-sacs and “T” turnarounds shall be in accordance with these 
standards and LCRC geometric design requirements.  This requirement may be waived if the shared 
private driveway is 150 feet or less in length.  
 
Comments:  The proposed shared driveways are both shown with t/hammerhead turnarounds.  At the 
proposed locations, this type of turn around appears to create less impact on the surrounding 
environment than a circular cul-de-sac would.  The Planning Commission, with consideration of Township 
Engineer and Fire Inspector comments, should determine if those are appropriate turnarounds. 
 

I. Circular Cul-De-Sac Turnaround Design.  When a circular cul-de-sac turnaround is required for 
installation by the Planning Commission, the turnaround shall be designed with a forty-five (45) foot 
radius if no internal landscape island is required or with a fifty-five (55) foot radius if a center landscaped 
island is required.  Where required, the internal landscape island shall be located in the center of the 
turnaround and shall be twenty (20) feet in diameter.  A larger turnaround may be required for 
commercial and industrial shared private driveways.  
 
Comments:  The application does not call for a circular cul-de-sac turnaround.  This standard would only 
apply if the Planning Commission determines a circular cul-de-sac turnaround is required. 
 

J. “T” Turnaround Design.  When a “T” or “hammerhead” turnaround is required for installation by the 
Planning Commission, the turnaround shall provide perpendicular extensions from the main traveled 
surface of the shared private driveway to permit a vehicle to turn around.  The extensions shall be not 
less than twenty (20) feet in width and extend from each side of the centerline of the easement for a 
distance of sixty (60) feet.  A turning radius of twenty-eight (28) feet shall be provided from the traveled 
surface onto the turnaround.  The surface and base materials of the “T” turnaround shall be the same as 
the surface and base materials of the shared private driveway.  
 
Comments:  The proposed t/hammerhead turnarounds are consistent with the required dimensions 
outlined above and appear to be the same materials as the rest of the shared private driveway. 
 

K. Intersection Design Standards.  Shared private driveways that intersect with existing or proposed 
private roads or public street rights-of-way should intersect at a ninety (90) degree angle.  Where 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
9 

constrained by environmental features, the Township Engineer may allow a reduced angle of 
intersection but in no case shall the angle be less than seventy (70) degrees.  
 
Comments:  Though not labelled, both of the shared private driveways appear to intersect with the 
existing private roads at 90 degrees. 
 

L. Intersection Offsets from Streets.  Proposed shared private driveway intersections with a public or 
private road shall align directly across from, or be offset by at least two hundred fifty (250) feet from 
existing intersections of public streets or private roads on the opposite side of the street, measured 
centerline to centerline.  This standard may be reduced if approved by the Livingston County Road 
Commission and the Tyrone Township Board of Trustees, with recommendation from the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Comments:  The proposed shared private driveways are more than 250 feet from existing intersections 
on the opposite side of the street. 
 

M. Vertical Clearance.  In order to provide adequate access for emergency vehicles, fifteen (15) feet of 
overhead tree clearance shall be provided within the width of the finished surface.  
 
Comments:  Notes on Sheets 3 and 4 confirm that a 15-foot vertical clearance will be maintained. 
 

N. Signs.  Regulatory signs shall be positioned and installed in accordance with the Michigan Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices on all shared private driveways where such driveways intersect with 
public or private roads.  All other signs within the shared private driveway easement shall be identified 
on the site plan and designed and placed in accordance with the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices, unless the Planning Commission approves another type of design for consistency with 
the character of the development.  Shared private driveways shall not be named and shall not have signs 
bearing street names.  
 
Comments:  Construction note 33 on Sheet 1 confirms that all signs and pavement markings will be in 
compliance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  However, the plans do not show where 
any signs or pavement markings will be installed.  We defer comment to the Township Engineer as to 
what traffic control signs would be appropriate. 
 

O. Modifications of These Standards.  At the discretion of the Planning Commission and Township Board, 
the standards of this article may be modified.  The Planning Commission and Township Board may 
determine that alternative design or construction materials will provide a shared private driveway of 
equal or superior quality.  Further, the Planning Commission and Township Board shall have the 
authority to modify the review requirements in order to assure the requirements of the Township are 
considered in an appropriate forum and with the necessary level of professional design expertise.  
 
Comments:  It does not appear that any modifications of the shared private driveway standards are 
requested as part of this application.   
 

P. Compliance with AASHTO Standards. Where no specific standard is provided in this Section, shared 
private driveway design plans shall meet the design criteria for local rural roads described in the most 
recent edition of the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
10 

Manual "A Policy on Geometric Design for Highways and Streets."  Minimum horizontal and vertical 
curve radii and stopping distances shall be determined using design standards in this AASHTO manual to 
provide minimum safe sight-distances, provided that the minimum horizontal curve shall be two-
hundred and thirty (230) feet in radius. 
 
Comments:  The proposed shared private driveways appear to be consistent with the AASHTO standards, 
but we defer additional comment to the Township Engineer. 
 

Q. Conversion of Shared Private Driveway to Private Road.  Any proposal to modify the use of a shared 
private driveway so that the shared private driveway will serve the functional capacity of a private 
road… 
 
Comments:  The application does not call for the conversion of a shared private driveway to a private 
road.  This standard does not apply. 
 

R. Setbacks and Structures.  Shared private driveways shall not be considered streets.  However, on lots 
where the only means of access is a shared private driveway and there is no street frontage, the yard 
fronting on the shared private driveway shall be considered the front yard for zoning and setback 
purposes.  On lots where the only means of access is a shared private driveway and there is street 
frontage, the lot shall be treated as a corner lot (i.e. a lot with two front yards) for zoning and setback 
purposes.  
 
Comments:  The plans show front-yard setbacks for the proposed lots from the proposed shared private 
driveway access easements, as described above. 
 

S. Adjacent Properties.  For shared private driveways built after the effective date of this amendment 
(April 30, 2008) and located on a property line, access to that shared private driveway is encouraged to 
be provided to the adjacent property.  The developer or owner of the adjacent property shall petition 
the owner(s) of the shared private driveway(s) located on the adjacent property to request a forum to 
discuss and negotiate access to, and use of, the existing shared private driveway(s).  However, where 
such access is granted and will exceed the maximum number of lots permitted on a shared private 
driveway, the shared private driveway shall be converted to a private road per paragraph P above. 
 
Comments:  The proposed shared private driveways are not located along property lines.  Lot 5 is 
adjacent to both of the proposed shared private driveways and has significant frontage along the 
Riverwalk cul-de-sac.  If Lot 5 has access from the proposed western shared private driveway, it would be 
the fifth property with access, requiring the shared private driveway to be a private road. 
 

T. Nonconforming Shared Private Driveways.  Nonconforming shared private driveways may be modified 
in conformance with the requirements in Section 24.04.  Where necessary to accommodate shared 
private driveways versus private roads, the standards may be modified by the Township. 
 
Comments:  The application does not call for modifying an existing nonconforming shared private 
driveway.  This standard does not apply. 
 
 
  



DMN Property Holdings LLC 
Shared Private Driveways 
September 10, 2021 
 

 
11 

SUMMARY & COMMENTS 
 
The proposed shared private driveway applications appear to be generally complete or would be with 
additional information outlined in this report. 
 
As noted in the introduction, this review does not examine the proposed lots. 
 
Potential conditions of approval or requests for additional information are outlined below. 
 
 
1) Planning Commission affirmation of the Fire Inspector’s condition that any houses have a sprinkler 

system, and that requirement should be recorded as a deed restriction. 
2) A separate maintenance agreement should be prepared for each shared private driveway and 

approved by the Township Attorney. 
3) The access for Lot 5 should be clarified. 

4) Planning Commission confirmation of the proposed T-shaped turnaround rather than a cul-de-sac. 
5) Addition of information about traffic control devices (stop sign, etcera) should be added to the plans. 
6) Confirmation of design standards by Township Engineer. 
7) Approval of turnarounds and fire suppression by Fire Inspector. 

 
 

  





DMN PROPERTIES LLC
FOR

CONSTRUCTION PLANS

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY, MI

OVERALL SITE MAP

PREPARED BY:

PREPARED FOR:

1

SHEET INDEX

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

NE 1/4 SECTION 31 & W 1/4 SECTION 32

DMN PROPERTIES LLC
4404 SUNNY LAKE DR
HARTLAND, MI 48353
PHONE: 810-333-1268
CONTACT: DAVE BAIR

INDEMNIFICATION STATEMENT

LOCATION MAP

3121 E. GRAND RIVER AVE.
HOWELL, MI.  48843

517.546.4836  FAX 517.548.1670

Engineers    Surveyors    Planners    Landscape Architects
Engineering

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

PARCEL #4704-32-100-010, PER WARRANTY DEED, DATED OCTOBER 28, 2020, AS RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 2020R-046927, LIVINGSTON COUNTY RECORDS:
Part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 31 and Part of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 32, Town 4 North, Range 6 East, Tyrone Township, Livingston County, Michigan, more particularly

described as follows; commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 32, said point also being the Northeast corner of Section 31; thence along the North line of Section 32,
North 89 degrees 34 minutes 06 seconds East, 820.22 feet; thence North 00 degrees 25 minutes 54 seconds East 62.00 feet, thence along the centerline of Fausett Road (66
foot wide), South 80 degrees 39 minutes 36 seconds East 365.30 feet; thence along the North line of Section 32, North 89 degrees 34 minutes 06 seconds East, 119.07 feet
(previously described as 119.10 feet); thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 51 seconds East, 826.29 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel to be described; thence
continuing South 00 degrees 25 minutes 51 seconds East, 1845.60 feet; thence South 89 degrees 52 minutes 12 seconds West, 1306.96 feet (previously described as 1306.98
feet), to the West 1/4 corner of Section 32, said point also being the East 1/4 corner of Section 31; thence along the East-West 1/4 line of said Section 31, South 89 degrees 52
minutes 12 seconds West, 212 feet, more or less to the water's edge of Lake Shannon; thence Northerly along the water's edge of Lake Shannon, 618 feet, more or less;
thence continuing along the water's edge of Lake Shannon, Northerly, 177 feet, more or less, thence North 58 degrees 52 minutes 21 seconds East, 35 feet, more or less, to
traverse point "C", said point being North 41 degrees 14 minutes 32 seconds West, 169.05 feet from traverse point "C-1", said point also being North 23 degrees 26 minutes 30
seconds West, 818.85 feet (previously described as North 23 degrees 18 minutes 40 seconds West, 816.41 feet) from the East 1/4 corner of Section 31; thence continuing
from traverse point "C", North 58 degrees 52 minutes 21 seconds East, 328.10 feet; thence along the cul-de-sac of Riverwalk Way along the following two (2) courses: 1) South
31 degrees 07 minutes 39 seconds East, 56.48 feet; 2) Southeasterly along an arc left, having a length of 103.64 feet, a radius of 75.00 feet, a central angle of 79 degrees 10
minutes 16 seconds, and a long chord which bears South 70 degrees 42 minutes 47 seconds East, 95.59 feet; thence continuing along the cul-de-sac the following two (2)
courses: 1) Northerly along an arc left, having a length of 224.73 feet, a radius of 75.00 feet, a central angle of 171 degrees 40 minutes 53 seconds, and a long chord which
bears North 16 degrees 08 minutes 21 seconds West, 149.61 feet; 2) Northwesterly along an arc right, having a length of 61.83 feet, a radius of 50.00 feet, a central angle of
70 degrees 51 minutes 09 seconds, and a long chord which bears North 66 degrees 33 minutes 13 seconds West, 57.97 feet; thence North 64 degrees 03 minutes 13 seconds
East, 343.26 feet; thence due East, 130.00 feet; thence North 28 degrees 10 minutes 35 seconds East, 422.09 feet; thence North 00 degrees 25 minutes 54 seconds East,
247.84 feet; thence Easterly along an arc left, having a length of 151.46 feet, a radius of 1045.00 feet, a central angle of 08 degrees 18 minutes 15 seconds, and a long chord
which bears North 82 degrees 30 minutes 54 seconds East, 151.33 feet; thence North 78 degrees 21 minutes 46 seconds East, 76.16 feet; thence Southerly along an arc right,
having a length of 12.57 feet, a radius of 8.00 feet, a central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds, and a long chord which bears South 56 degrees 38 minutes 14
seconds East, 11.31 feet; thence South 11 degrees 38 minutes 14 seconds East, 10.00 feet; thence North 78 degrees 21 minutes 46 seconds East, 90.00 feet; thence North 11
degrees 38 minutes 14 seconds West, 36.92 feet; thence South 89 degrees 34 minutes 06 seconds East 356.69 feet to the point of beginning.

G:\20-012\DWG\SP\20-012 Site Plan1.dwg, 9/29/2021 9:02:40 AM, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3



SH
AR

ED
 D

RI
VE

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN

2

DM
N 

PR
OP

ER
TI

ES
 S

HA
RE

D 
DR

IV
ES

81
0-

33
3-

12
68

HA
RT

LA
ND

, M
I  

48
35

3
44

04
 S

UN
NY

 L
AK

E 
DR

IV
E

DM
N 

PR
OP

ER
TI

ES

Engineering

31
21

 E
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

ER
 A

VE
.

HO
W

EL
L,

 M
I. 

 4
88

43
51

7.
54

6.
48

36
  F

AX
 5

17
.5

48
.1

67
0

En
gin

ee
rs 

   S
ur

ve
yo

rs 
   P

lan
ne

rs 
   L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rch

ite
cts

E
n
g
in
ee

ri
n
g

G:\20-012\DWG\SP\20-012 Site Plan1.dwg, 9/29/2021 9:02:47 AM, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3



963
962 963 964 97

0
97

1
97

2
97

3

1.9
8%

2.
00

%

2.
00

%

2.
00

%

25
.0

2%

EA
ST

 S
HA

RE
D 

DR
IV

E 
PL

AN

3

DM
N 

PR
OP

ER
TI

ES
 S

HA
RE

D 
DR

IV
ES

81
0-

33
3-

12
68

HA
RT

LA
ND

, M
I  

48
35

3
44

04
 S

UN
NY

 L
AK

E 
DR

IV
E

DM
N 

PR
OP

ER
TI

ES

Engineering

31
21

 E
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

ER
 A

VE
.

HO
W

EL
L,

 M
I. 

 4
88

43
51

7.
54

6.
48

36
  F

AX
 5

17
.5

48
.1

67
0

En
gin

ee
rs 

   S
ur

ve
yo

rs 
   P

lan
ne

rs 
   L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rch

ite
cts

E
n
g
in
ee

ri
n
g

G:\20-012\DWG\SP\20-012 Site Plan1.dwg, 9/29/2021 9:02:53 AM, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3



894

894
898

914
918

920921922

910

912

914

916
918

896
897

898
899

900
901

902

2.
00

%

2.
00

%

2.00%

25.00%
3.

75
%2.

00
%

W
ES

T 
SH

AR
ED

 D
RI

VE
 P

LA
N

4

DM
N 

PR
OP

ER
TI

ES
 S

HA
RE

D 
DR

IV
ES

81
0-

33
3-

12
68

HA
RT

LA
ND

, M
I  

48
35

3
44

04
 S

UN
NY

 L
AK

E 
DR

IV
E

DM
N 

PR
OP

ER
TI

ES

Engineering

31
21

 E
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

ER
 A

VE
.

HO
W

EL
L,

 M
I. 

 4
88

43
51

7.
54

6.
48

36
  F

AX
 5

17
.5

48
.1

67
0

En
gin

ee
rs 

   S
ur

ve
yo

rs 
   P

lan
ne

rs 
   L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rch

ite
cts

E
n
g
in
ee

ri
n
g

G:\20-012\DWG\SP\20-012 Site Plan1.dwg, 9/29/2021 9:03:02 AM, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3



 

 

 

 

 

SHARED PRIVATE DRIVEWAY OFF SHANNON GLEN DRIVE 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

 
This Agreement for the maintenance and repair of that certain private road easement, the legal 

description and/or plat of which is set forth in legal description attached hereto and made apart 

hereof, is entered into by the current landowner (hereinafter referred to as “LANDOWNER”) for 

the benefit of future Lot Owners who will use the private road easement (hereinafter referred 

to as “LOT OWNERS”, which shall include the LANDOWNER to the extent he/she retains any 

ownership interest in any lot or lots.). 

 

WHEREAS, Landowner is the owner of certain real property being divided and developed as 

that will use and enjoy the benefit of said road easement.  A complete legal description of said 

real property is attached and incorporated by reference.  Said real property is hereinafter 

referred to as the Property: and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is mutual desire of the parties hereto that said private road easement be 

maintained in a safe and usable condition by the Lot Owners; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is the mutual desire of the parties hereto to establish a method for the 

maintenance and repair of said private road easement and for the apportionment of the 

expense of such maintenance and repair among existing and future Lot Owners; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is the mutual intention of the parties that this Agreement constitute a covenant 

running with the land, binding upon each successive Lot Owners of all or any portion of the 

property; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The property is benefited by this Agreement, and present and successive Lot Owners of all or 

any portion of the Property are expressly bound hereby for the benefit of the land., 

 

2. The cost and expense of maintaining the private road easement shall be divided equally 

among the subdivided parcels created in the division and indicated on the attached legal 

description and paid by the Lot Owners or the heirs, assigns and successors in interest of each 

such owner of the Parcels indicated. 

 

3. In the event any of the herein described parcels of land are divided further, the Lot Owners, 

heirs, assigns and successors in interest of each such newly created parcel shall be liable under 

this Agreement for their then pro rata share of expenses and such pro rata shares of expenses 

shall be computed to reflect such newly created parcels. 

4. The repairs and maintenance to be performed under this Assignment shall be limited to the 

following, unless the consent for additional work is agreed to by a majority vote of the Lot 

Owners owning 100% of the number of parcels, including divisions thereof as described in 

paragraph 3 above: 

 



• Reasonable and normal road improvement and maintenance work to adequately 

maintain said private road easement and related drainage facilities to permit all 

weather access.  Repairs and maintenance under this Agreement shall include, but is 

not limited to, filling of holes, repairing cracks, repairing, and resurfacing of 

roadbeds, repairing and maintaining drainage structures, removing debris, 

maintaining any signs, markers, striping and lighting, if any, and other work 

reasonably necessary or proper to repair and preserve the easement for all weather 

road purposes. 

 

5. Any extraordinary repair required to correct damage to said road easement that results from 

action taken or contracted for by parties hereto or their successors in interests shall be paid for 

by the party taking action or party contracting for work which caused the necessity for the 

extraordinary repair.  The repair shall be such as to restore the road easement to the condition 

existing prior to said damage.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this _____ day of 

_______________. ____________. 

 

 

 _________________________ 

Land Owner 

 

_________________________ 

Land Owner 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

SHARED PRIVATE DRIVEWAY OFF RIVERWALKWAY MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

 
This Agreement for the maintenance and repair of that certain private road easement, the legal 

description and/or plat of which is set forth in legal description attached hereto and made apart 

hereof, is entered into by the current landowner (hereinafter referred to as “LANDOWNER”) for 

the benefit of future Lot Owners who will use the private road easement (hereinafter referred 

to as “LOT OWNERS”, which shall include the LANDOWNER to the extent he/she retains any 

ownership interest in any lot or lots.). 

 

WHEREAS, Landowner is the owner of certain real property being divided and developed as 

that will use and enjoy the benefit of said road easement.  A complete legal description of said 

real property is attached and incorporated by reference.  Said real property is hereinafter 

referred to as the Property: and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is mutual desire of the parties hereto that said private road easement be 

maintained in a safe and usable condition by the Lot Owners; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is the mutual desire of the parties hereto to establish a method for the 

maintenance and repair of said private road easement and for the apportionment of the 

expense of such maintenance and repair among existing and future Lot Owners; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is the mutual intention of the parties that this Agreement constitute a covenant 

running with the land, binding upon each successive Lot Owners of all or any portion of the 

property; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The property is benefited by this Agreement, and present and successive Lot Owners of all or 

any portion of the Property are expressly bound hereby for the benefit of the land., 

 

2. The cost and expense of maintaining the private road easement shall be divided equally 

among the subdivided parcels created in the division and indicated on the attached legal 

description and paid by the Lot Owners or the heirs, assigns and successors in interest of each 

such owner of the Parcels indicated. 

 

3. In the event any of the herein described parcels of land are divided further, the Lot Owners, 

heirs, assigns and successors in interest of each such newly created parcel shall be liable under 

this Agreement for their then pro rata share of expenses and such pro rata shares of expenses 

shall be computed to reflect such newly created parcels. 

4. The repairs and maintenance to be performed under this Assignment shall be limited to the 

following, unless the consent for additional work is agreed to by a majority vote of the Lot 

Owners owning 100% of the number of parcels, including divisions thereof as described in 

paragraph 3 above: 



 

• Reasonable and normal road improvement and maintenance work to adequately 

maintain said private road easement and related drainage facilities to permit all 

weather access.  Repairs and maintenance under this Agreement shall include, but is 

not limited to, filling of holes, repairing cracks, repairing, and resurfacing of 

roadbeds, repairing and maintaining drainage structures, removing debris, 

maintaining any signs, markers, striping and lighting, if any, and other work 

reasonably necessary or proper to repair and preserve the easement for all weather 

road purposes. 

 

5. Any extraordinary repair required to correct damage to said road easement that results from 

action taken or contracted for by parties hereto or their successors in interests shall be paid for 

by the party taking action or party contracting for work which caused the necessity for the 

extraordinary repair.  The repair shall be such as to restore the road easement to the condition 

existing prior to said damage.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this _____ day of 

_______________. ____________. 

 

 

 _________________________ 

Land Owner 

 

_________________________ 

Land Owner 

 



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANT 
 

These Covenants are hereby made on the date set forth below, by DMN Property Holdings, 
LLC, whose address is: 4404 Sunny Lake Drive, Highland MI 48353 (“Developer”) 

 
Recitals 

 
• The Developer is the title holder of certain real property located in Tyrone Township, 

Livingston County, Michigan, described on the attached Exhibit A and identified as Parcel 
5 (“Premises”) on the Survey and prepared by Boss Engineering, Job No. 20-012-1 
(“Survey”) and recorded with the Livingston County Register of Deeds as Document 
Number ___________________; and 

 
• The Developer has split and is developing the Premises and the surrounding properties as 

identified on the Survey through the establishment of certain shared driveways and wishes 
to record the following restriction to govern the future access of the Premises.  

 
In consideration of the Recitals, the Developer hereby establishes against the Premises, the 

following covenants and restrictions:  
 

1. Driveway access to the subject property shall be from the shared driveway located 
along the eastern boundary of the Premises which connects to Shannon Glen Drive 
and shall not be through direct or shared driveway access to Riverwalk Way. 
 

2. The requirements of access by way of Shannon Glen Drive shall apply even if the 
shared driveway is converted to a private road. 

 
3. The provisions of this Agreement are a condition of the approval of Tyrone 

Township to the proposed land divisions by Developer. The Agreement shall be 
enforceable by any owner of any parcel adjacent to the Premises, the Developer and 
its successors so long as Developers or their successors own a lot in the Premises, 
and Tyrone Township.  
 

4. The provisions of this Agreement are made for the benefit of Tyrone Township, 
Developer, and the owners of parcels adjacent to the Premises and shall run with 
the land and be binding on successive owners of the Premises. 

 
5. These restrictions are effective upon execution hereof. 

 



 2 

 
DEVELOPER: 
DMN Property Holdings, LLC 
              
_______________________________________ 
David M. Bair, Member 
 
              
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 
COUNTY OF LIVINGSTON) ss. 
 
On this ______day of ________________, 2021 before me personally appeared, David Bair, who 
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be their free act and deed. 
 

_____________________________________ 
        _________________________, Notary Public 
       ______________________ County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires:________________ 
Acting in the County of _________________ 

         
Drafted By and When Recorded Return To : 
Abby H. Cooper, Cooper & Riesterer, PLC, 7900 Grand River Rd., Brighton, MI 48114 (810) 227-3103 

 
  



 3 

Exhibit A 
 

Land situated in the Township of Tyrone, County of Livingston, State of Michigan, more 
particularly described as follows: 

 

 
 



NEW BUSINESS #3 
 

Settlement agreement request. 
 
 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

RECITALS: 

1. Mark and Molly Betley (“the Betleys”) are owners of 10466 Runyan Lake 

Road, Fenton, MI (“the property”). 

2. The Betleys have submitted plans to and seek a land use permit from Tyrone 

Township (“the Township”) to construct a single family residence on the 

property. 

3. That the Betleys and Township (collectively “the parties”) including the 

Township’s Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals, have had 

multiple discussions and meetings wherein the parties have heard and 

considered the concerns of the parties and an agreement has been reached 

between the parties, the terms of which are set forth below, as to the 

construction of a home on the property.  

TERMS OF AGREEMENT: 

1. The Betleys agree to construct a single family home on the property 

consistent with the plot plan they initially submitted to the Township on or 

about January 2020.  

2. That the setbacks for the construction of the proposed residence, as it relates 

to the shoreline of Runyan Lake shall be 122.78 feet as to the south side of 

the residence and 137.35 feet to the north side from the edge of the main 

floor deck. The deck for the residence shall be at the same elevation as the 

main floor ranch level.  The deck shall be 14 feet in length thereby making the 

south side of the residence 136.78 feet from the shoreline and 151.35 feet 

from the north side of the shoreline.   

3. The Township hereby agrees to process and issue, through its zoning 

administrator, a land use permit for the Betleys to construct their proposed 

residence in accordance with the plot plan the Betleys previously submitted to 

the Township and with the setbacks set forth in the immediately preceding 

paragraph of this Agreement upon: 

 

a. Betley submitting a site plan depicting his proposed new structure at 

the set-backs established by this agreement; 

b. Submission of building plans to the County and Tyrone Township; 

c. Erection of the construction fence as required by the Tyrone Township 

Planning Commission; 

d. Establish the escrow account required for the demolition of the existing 

structure; 



4. The Betleys agree to demolish the existing structure on the property within 3 

months of the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the new construction.  

The 3 month period may be extended up to an additional 3 months upon 

Betley providing proof that he hired a demolition contractor within 2 weeks of 

the issuance of the certificate of occupancy but the demolition contractor 

cannot complete the demolition within the initial 3 month period. 

5. The Betleys hereby agree, as it relates to the primary structure on the 

property, to refrain from requesting any variances from the Township. 

6. The Betleys agree to follow all applicable ordinance requirements not 

inconsistent with the terms of this agreement. 

 

_____________________   ___________________________ 
Date:      Mark Betley 
 
_____________________   ____________________________ 
Date      Molly Betley 
 
_____________________   _____________________________ 
Date      Tyrone Township Official (print name) 



NEW BUSINESS #4 
 

Appointment to Planning Commission. 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION  (3 year term)  
Revised Sept.  7 ,  2021 

 
Term 

Began: 

Term 

Expires: 

 

Richard 

Erickson 

Chairman 

 

5/7/19 

9/1/19 

8/31/19 

8/31/22 

Kurt Schulze 

Board Ex-officio 

Vice-Chairman 

07/19/16 

08/20/19 

11/20/20 

08/31/19 

11/19/20 

11/19/24 

 

Jon Ward 

Secretary 

 

09/1/20 08/31/23 

 

Vacant 

Commissioner 

 

8/20/19 08/31/22 

 

Garrett Ladd 

Commissioner 

 

09/07/21 08/31/24 

 

Steve Krause 

Commissioner 

 

10/06/20 

09/07/21 

 

08/31/21 

08/31/24 

 

Bill Wood 

Commissioner 

12/17/13 

09/01/14 

09/01/17 

08/31/20 

08/31/14 

08/31/17 

09/31/20 

09/01/23 

 


